
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

200 3rd Street North 
Fargo, North Dakota 

Phone: (701)241-1474 
Fax: (701) 241-1526 

E-Mail: planning@cityoffargo.com 
www.cityoffargo.com 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

Renaissance Zone Authority meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and can be seen live by video stream 
on www.cityoffargo.com/streaming. They are rebroadcast each Friday at 2:30 p.m. for one month following the meeting. 
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office at 
241-1474 or TDD at 241-8258. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to make 
arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.cityoffargo.com/RenaissanceZoneAuthority. 

 

 

 

TO:  Renaissance Zone Authority 
 
FROM: Derrick LaPoint, Planner 
 
DATE: April 21, 2017 
 
RE:  Renaissance Zone Authority Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

RENAISSANCE ZONE AUTHORITY  

Wednesday, April 26, 2017 at 8 a.m. (City Commission Room) 

 Agenda  

 
 

1. Approve Order of Agenda 
 

2. Approve Minutes: Regular Meeting of April 5, 2017 (Attachment 1) 
 

3. Review application from Jade Companies (Rehabilitation) located at 18 13½ 
Street North (Attachment 2) 
 

4. Review application from Jade Companies (Rehabilitation) located at 30 
University Drive North  (Attachment 3) 

 
5. Legislative Update 

 
6. Other Business 

 
 

mailto:planning@cityoffargo.com
http://www.cityoffargo.com/
http://www.cityoffargo.com/streaming
http://www.cityoffargo.com/RenaissanceZoneAuthority


RENAISSANCE ZONE AUTHORITY 
MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting: Tuesday: April 5, 2017: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Renaissance Zone Authority of the City of Fargo, North 
Dakota, was held in the City Commission Room at City Hall at 8:00 o'clock a.m., April 5, 
2017. 
 
The Renaissance Zone Authority members present or absent were as follows: 
 
Present: Dr. Dean Bresciani, Commissioner Dave Piepkorn, Bruce Furness, 

Commissioner Tony Grindberg, Cari Luchau, Deb Mathern, 
Chad Peterson, Steve Swiontek 

 
Absent: None 
 
Chair Mathern called the meeting to order. 
 
Item 1: Approve Order of Agenda 
Chair Mathern presented and asked for any additions or corrections to the agenda.  
Hearing none, she stated the agenda stands approved as presented. 
 
Item 2: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of February 22, 2017 
Member Peterson noted a correction to the minutes.  Member Piepkorn moved the 
amended minutes of the February 22, 2017 Renaissance Zone Authority meeting be 
approved.  Second by Member Bresciani.  All Members present voted aye and the 
motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 3: Review Application from Northland Hospitality, LLC (New 
Construction) at 301 3rd Avenue North:  APPROVED 
Planner Derrick LaPoint presented this item and noted a correction to the staff report 
referring to Block 10, which should read Block 8.  Mr. LaPoint stated staff is 
recommending approval as the proposal does meet the guidelines and all required 
approval criteria. 
 
The Board discussed additional parking availability; existing storm water policy in the 
DMU, Downtown Mixed Use zoning districts; and the proposed legislative changes that 
may affect this application. 
 
Applicant Kevin Hall spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Member Piepkorn moved to approve the application submitted by Northland Hospitality, 
LLC, and to grant the property tax exemption and the State income tax exemptions as 
allowed by the North Dakota Renaissance Zone law, contingent upon completion of the 
project and verification of costs.  Second by Member Swiontek.  On call of the roll 



Renaissance Zone Authority 
April 5, 2017  Page No. 2 
 
Members Piepkorn, Luchau, Furness, Swiontek, Peterson, Grindberg, Bresciani, and 
Mathern voted aye.  The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 4: Review Request from Rick Nymark to add one (1) additional RZ 
“Candidate” Block:  APPROVED 
Derrick LaPoint reviewed the request stating staff is recommending approval to add 
Block 54 to the City’s Renaissance Zone Plan. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding staff’s review of the current Renaissance Zone 
Map; the process staff follows to determine their recommendation for changes to the 
map; what the term “candidate block” means; and the request for staff to provide an 
updated map at the next meeting. 
 
Member Furness moved to approve the request of the addition of the proposed 
Renaissance Zone Block 54 as a “candidate” block as recommended by staff.  Second 
by Member Luchau.  On call of the roll Members Luchau, Swiontek, Grindberg, 
Piepkorn, Furness, Bresciani, and Mathern voted aye.  Member Peterson abstained 
from voting.  The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 5: Review Request from Jade Companies to add/move two (2) 
additional RZ Blocks:  APPROVED 
Derrick LaPoint briefly reviewed this item, that was discussed at the February 22, 2017 
Renaissance Zone Authority meeting.  He stated staff is recommending approval with 
the request to remove Block 40 from the existing Renaissance Zone Boundary, to 
remain within the cap of 49 blocks total. 
 
Commissioner Grindberg asked if staff had received any concerns from area property 
owners.  Mr. LaPoint stated no opposition has been received to-date. 
 
Member Grindberg moved to approve the request of the addition of the proposed 
Renaissance Zone Blocks 52 and 53, and the removal of Renaissance Zone Bock 40, 
as recommended by the staff.  Second by Member Bresciani.  On call of the roll 
Members Grindberg, Peterson, Piepkorn, Swiontek, Furness, Luchau, Bresciani, and 
Mathern voted aye.  The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 6: City of Fargo Zone Plan Amendments:  APPROVED 
Derrick LaPoint reported staff has contacted the State to confirm the process when 
requesting amendments to the existing Renaissance Zone Plan and Map.  He stated 
the following documents are required:  an updated map and property inventory list 
(copies are included in the packet), and a notification letter of the proposed changes to 
be mailed to the area property owners.  Mr. LaPoint stated upon approval from this 
Board and the City Commission, a formal packet and request will be submitted to the 
State for final approval. 
 
Member Peterson shared the following suggestions after reviewing the existing RZ map:  
focus on the RZ blocks that have met or are near completion of their goals; revisit the 



Renaissance Zone Authority 
April 5, 2017  Page No. 3 
 
RZ blocks with no development or activity in the past 10 to 15 years, and notify the 
owners with the options to either begin rehab or development, or to remove their block 
from the map to allow other viable areas the opportunity to be added. 
 
The Board further discussed the following:  opportunities for continued success under 
the City’s RZ Plan; utilizing the Downtown Plan as a guide for decisions on the next 
steps taken for the RZ areas; adding markers to the RZ map to identify the various 
stages of development of the existing RZ approved projects; and reviewing the RZ map 
every two (2) years to reevaluate and make the needed changes. 
 
Member Peterson moved to recommend to the City Commission approval of the 
proposed Renaissance Zone boundary changes as presented.  Second by Member 
Furness.  On call of the roll Members Piepkorn, Luchau, Furness, Swiontek, Peterson, 
Grindberg, Bresciani, and Mathern voted aye.  The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 7: Legislative Update 
Planning Director Jim Gilmour presented an update on the two bills that would affect the 
City’s existing Renaissance Zone Plan and staff’s review process of applications 
received.  
 
Mr. LaPoint added staff is also informing any new applicants how the two Bills could 
affect their proposals. 
 
Item 8: Other Business 
Derrick LaPoint stated staff is expecting Renaissance Zone applications for the April 24, 
2017 Renaissance Zone Authority meeting. 
 
The time at adjournment was 9:55 a.m. 
 
 



 
 

 
Staff Report 

Renaissance Zone Application for 

18 13 ½ Street North (260-F) 

701 Collective  
 
Project Evaluation: 

 
The City of Fargo received a Renaissance Zone application from 701 Collective LLC to rehabilitate the existing 

structure at 18 13 ½ Street North. Pursuant to the application, the intent of the project is to complete extensive 

exterior and interior renovations to a former CHS processing plant. The building is 1 level and includes 

approximately 13,179 commercial square feet. The rehabilitation would renovate and update the building to 

provide commercial space for a theater and brewpub/restaurant.  Overall, the building improvements would 

include significant capital costs relating to structural alterations, window and door replacement, updating 

electrical, HVAC, and plumbing. 

 

The construction would begin in the spring or summer 2017 with the goal of completion in the fall of 2017. 

 

The Planning Department has reviewed the application and has provided a project ranking based on the analysis 

below. 

 
Lines 1: Use consistent with the RZ Plan (as per Visions and Goals): As noted in the 2015 Renaissance Zone 
Development Plan the desired land use on Block 53 is identified as: redevelopment and Infill; mixed-use, art center, 

commercial. As proposed, the project will contribute to a number of goals and objectives as outlined in the RZ Plan as 
follows: 
 

1. Activity Generator [goal]: Develop activity-generating enterprises near Renaissance Zone’s major 
commercial corridors: University Avenue North and NP/1st Avenue.  
 

The project is located on 13 ½ Street North and is a near a prominent entry points into downtown.   

Significant investment to the existing industrial space will increase the activity in this corridor.  

 
2. Walkable Districts [goal]: Create “walkable districts” that integrate a wide range of activities and land 

uses; thus encouraging on-street activity… 
 

The project will enhance the overall walkability of downtown Fargo by creating another destination 

point along the corridor. There are many new shops and dining opportunities near this subject 

location. Added improved commercial spaces will attract more businesses that may not be able to 

afford prime real estate along Broadway. 

 
3. Ground Floor Uses [goal]: Reserve ground floor land uses to those that will encourage streets to come to 

life – shops, offices, cafes, restaurants and other “public” facilities. 
 

The project will include the renovation of the ground floor and curb appeal of the property to create 

a variety of commercial uses to encourage street activity. 

 
4. Neighborhood Center [goal]: Make “Broadway” Fargo’s “Main Street” – a pedestrian-friendly, 

mixed-use magnet that anchors downtown neighborhoods. 

 

Many residents use 1st Avenue North as a gateway into downtown Fargo. Shops, restaurants and 

other amenities create a neighborhood center for people to gather.  

 



5. Urban Design [goal]: Projects will embody strong urban design principles inclusive of building massing 
and form, building materials, pedestrian orientated design, streetscape, building orientation and recognition 
of the importance of defined block corners, architectural style, high building coverage percentages, limited 
setbacks or downtown district appropriate setbacks, design longevity and street level transparency. 

 
6. Transportation [goal]:  Manage downtown transportation, accessibility and parking issues in a manner 

that will allow for further commercial developments and will make the entire area more user-friendly. 
 

The property is one block away from a transit stop and will provide ADA compliant entrances.  The 

location and the ADA compliant infrastructure will allow the entire area to be more user-friendly 

and manage downtown transportation issues by promoting another mode choice for a 

transportation option. 

 
7. Safe Streets – Safe Neighborhoods [goal]: Encourage safe streets and safe neighborhoods by relying on 

and utilizing the “natural surveillance” of lively and active streets.  
 

More people will be working and visiting this area resulting in a more lively and active street.  The 

activity and enhanced aesthetics from the improvements to the property will provide more natural 

surveillance will be provided to increase the safety of the area.  

 
8. High Quality Housing [goal]:  Continue to encourage the production of unique high quality housing that is 

developed in areas targeted for residential development or as a component of a mixed-use project. 
 

9. Infill [goal]: Encourage and actively pursue projects that increase the productivity of underutilized 
property such as surface parking lots, vacant land and parcels with low building to land value ratios. Infill 
projects shall conform and be consistent with urban design principles as set forth in Goal 5, above.. 

 
The project is an infill project in that it will repurpose an existing, underutilized building for more 

intense uses. 

 
10. Housing Amenities [goal]:  Integrate quality housing with public open space and neighborhood amenities, 

requiring the enhancement of existing amenities in conjunction with the creation of new ones. 
 

11. Downtown Entryways [goal]:  Enhance auto entry experiences with landscaping improvements to all 
major corridors (Broadway, Roberts St, 1st/NP Avenue, Main Avenue) and gateway statements at 
Broadway/Main Avenue, Broadway/6th Ave N, 1st Avenue/Red River, Main Avenue/Red River and 
Main Ave/10th Street N. 

 
The project is located on 13 ½ Street North along 1st Avenue North.  1st Avenue North is used by 

cars, bikers and pedestrians to enter into downtown Fargo.  

 
12. The Place to Be [goal]: Make downtown the entertainment/cultural/recreational center of the city… Make 

downtown a key destination for visitors/conventioneers and a key destination for residents. 
 

The proposed project will provide a key downtown entertainment, cultural, and recreational 

destination.  The project proposes repurposing an under-utilized building to provide performance 

art and restaurant services. 

 
13. A Place Like No Other [goal]:  Highlight the unique historic character of the Renaissance Zone by placing 

a high value on historic preservation and overall awareness of the history of the area. 
 

14. 24 Hours a day – 7 Days per Week – 365 Days a Year [goal]:  Design spaces, facilities and features that 
will attract people to the area both day and night, on weekdays and weekends, and during all seasons of the 
year. 

 
15. Connections and Coordination [goal]: … Strong connections between people, places and things to do are 

vital to creating a strong sense of community. 
 

The proposed project will provide a social venue where connections between people can be 

established and contribute to a strong sense of community. 



 
 (8 /10 points) 
 
Line 2: Will exterior rehabilitation or the proposed improvements be sufficient to eliminate any and all deteriorated 
conditions that are visible on the exterior of the building? Does the project scope address the interior and exterior of the 
building in a comprehensive manner?:  
 

Proposed improvements will include: structural alterations, window and door replacement, updating electrical, 

HVAC, and plumbing.  The rehabilitation project is sufficient to eliminate any deteriorated conditions that are 

visible on the exterior of the building. 

 
(10/ 10 points) 
 
Line 3: Does the investment comply with the minimum State standard that requires an investment of no less than 50% of 
the current true and full valuation of the building?:  
 

The property is currently assessed at $544,600. The applicant has proposed a total rehabilitation investment of 

$529,913 which exceeds the required 50% investment guideline. These improvements will result in $40.20 per SF 

(RZ minimum is $25 per SF for residential and $40 per SF for commercial) being invested into the existing space.  

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 4: Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 
commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan?:  
 
Pursuant to City of Fargo Renaissance Zone standards, in order to qualify for consideration, a project must meet 

a minimum $25 per SF capital improvement threshold for residential rehabilitation and $40 per square foot 

capital improvement for commercial rehabilitation. New construction must meet $100 per square foot capital 

investment threshold.  

 

According to the application, the structure accommodates 13,179 square feet.  The application estimates a total 

capital investment of $529,913, which calculates to approximately $40.20 per SF.  

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 5:  Sub-Total: The sub-total of lines 1–4 equals 40 points. 
 
Line 6: Use consistent with the RZ Plan (as per Visions and Goals)?:  
 
Line 7: Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 

commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan?  
 
Line 8: Tenant must be leasing space in a building that has been approved as a Zone project: NA 
 
Line 9: The new construction or proposed improvements are representative of “High Priority Land Uses” as defined in 
the RZ Plan: These criteria are defined by four sub-categories, as follows: 
 

Primary Sector Business: N/A 

 

Active Commercial, Specialty Retail or Destination Commercial: The project is located near 1st Avenue 

North, near a prominent entry point into downtown. Significant investment to the existing industrial 

building to create multiple and various commercial spaces that complement each other will increase the 

activity in this corridor.  Renovations will allow the building to acquire more employees and attract 

more visitors. 

 

Mixed Use Development: The proposed project will allow for a mix of commercial (performance art and 

restaurant) and industrial uses (brewery manufacturing and production). 

 (6 / 10 points) 
 
Line 10: The investment is located in a ‘Target Area’ as defined by the RZ Plan:   



 
1) Parcels that have been vacant or underutilized for an extended period of time:  

 
The proposed project will provide investment in a property that was underutilized for an extended 

period of time.  The renovation of the building will provide several more intense uses that will generate 

more activity as well as provide a destination. 

 (5/5 points) 
 
2) Parcels specifically targeted for clearance:  
 

The RZ Plan designates Block 53 as being appropriate for redevelopment and infill; mixed-use, art 

center, commercial. The proposed project meets these objectives by redeveloping an existing building for 

a mix of uses, including commercial uses and an art center. 

(5/5 points) 
 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 11: The project will create civic space or public space and/or will enhance pedestrian connectivity, streetscape 
amenities or will contribute to street level activation:  
 
This project will enhance and strengthen the 1st Avenue North corridor by renovating an existing structure into 

an updated mixed-use development. The renovation will improve the appearance of this gateway into the 

downtown core. The project will improve the overall appearance and contribute to the overall level of activity in 

the downtown fringe. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 12: Consideration and analysis as to the total actual investment in the project:  
 
As proposed, the rehabilitation project and improvement costs exceed both the 50% (true and full value of the 

building) and $40 per square foot requirement. As previously noted, the application represents a total estimated 

investment of $529,913. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 

Line 13: Consideration as to whether the project will include or accommodate the relocation of a business from another 
North Dakota community:  
 
The project does not involve the movement or relocation of a business from another North Dakota community. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 14: Is the project located within a historic district? Will the project fit contextually and will the project contribute or 
enhance the area from an architectural perspective?  
 
This property is located outside the boundary of the Downtown Historic District. The proposed rehabilitation 

project will create an entertainment destination for Fargo residents. 

 
(8 / 10 points) 
 

Summary: 

 
This application received a score of 92 on a 100-point scale. The applicant met all required criteria and the use is 

consistent with the RZ Plan. In addition, the proposed rehabilitation project surpasses the local capital 

improvement requirement of $25 per SF capital improvement threshold for residential rehabilitation and $40 per 

square foot capital improvement for commercial rehabilitation. New construction must meet $100 per square foot 

capital investment threshold.  

 



This project is consistent with the RZ Plan as activity generators and walkable districts are important initiatives 

highlighted in the plan. The proposal will increase activity and add to the existing neighborhood center along 1st 

Avenue North. 

 

The amount invested in the project exceeds state and local guidelines. The project does not involve the relocation 

of commercial businesses from another North Dakota city. The applicant is not seeking historic preservation tax 

credits. The applicant will pursue a Storefront Grant to aid in the rehabilitation effort.  

 

This project will make use of a structure that is currently underutilized. Staff believes that this project will be a 

benefit to the downtown community and will positively contribute to the health of surrounding businesses.  

 
Suggested motion:   

 

Approve the application submitted by 701 Collective and grant the property tax exemption and the State income 

tax exemptions as allowed by the ND Renaissance Zone law contingent upon completion of the project and 

verification of costs.  



 

 

Renaissance Zone Scorecard 

Minimum Criteria (Rehabilitation Project) 
  Possible 

Rating 
Staff 
Rating 

1 Use consistent with the plan (as per Vision and Goals) 10 8 
2 Exterior rehabilitation sufficient to eliminate any and all deteriorated conditions that are visible on the exterior 

of the building 
10 10 

3 Re-investment that totals no less than 50 percent of the current true and full valuation of the building 10 10 
4 The investment totals at least $40 in capital improvements per square foot for commercial properties or $25 in 

capital improvements per square foot for residential properties  (The authority may waive the square foot 
investment requirement for certain projects) 

10 10 

Minimum Criteria (Proposals involving new construction or additions) 
6 Use consistent with the plan (as per Vision and Goals) N/A NA 
7 Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 

commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan? 
N/A NA 

8 Tenant must be leasing space in a building that has been approved as a Zone project NA NA 
Project Review Guidelines  
9 The new construction or proposed improvements are representative of “High Priority Land Uses” as defined 

in the RZ Plan: 
 Primary sector business 
 Active Commercial, Specialty Retail and/or Destination Commercial 
 Mixed use development (combination of housing, commercial, and/or retail uses in a horizontal or vertical 

fashion) 
 Large, upscale residential units 

10 6 

10 The investment is located in a ‘Target Area’ as defined by the RZ Plan: 
 Parcels that have been vacant or underutilized for an extended period of time 
 Parcels specifically targeted for clearance 

10 10 

11 The project will create civic space or public space and/or will enhance pedestrian connectivity, streetscape 
amenities or will contribute to street level activation: 

 Incorporation of "civic" or "public" space within a redevelopment proposal will receive additional 
consideration 

 Demonstrated commitment to strengthening pedestrian corridors and issues of "connection" 
 Attention to streetscape amenities 
 Contribution to street activity 

10 10 

12 Consideration and analysis as to the total actual investment in the project: 
 Consideration can be given for the level of capital investment in a project.  (i.e., additional consideration can be 

given for higher levels of investment) 

10 10 

13 Consideration as to whether the project will include or accommodate the relocation of a business from another 
North Dakota community: 

 Commercial tenants that are re-locating within the Downtown Area (as defined by the 1996 Downtown Area 
Plan) are not eligible for tax incentives without special approval from the Zone Authority 

 Commercial tenants that are relocating from a North Dakota community (other than Fargo) to the Fargo 
Renaissance Zone are not eligible for tax incentives without special approval from the Zone Authority. 

10 10 

14 Is the project located within a historic district? Will the project fit contextually and will the project contribute or 
enhance the area from an architectural perspective? 

 Although not included in the Project Review Guidelines, historic preservation is considered an important 
component of downtown projects even when Historic Preservation and Renovation Tax Credits are not being 
requested. 

10 8 

  Total Rating  (100 possible points) 100 92 



University Dr

Subject Property

1 AVE N

14 ST N

MAIN AVE

2 AVE N

UNIVERSITY DR N

13 1/2 ST N

14 ST S

NORTHERN PACIFIC AVE N

Subject Property



















 
 

 
Staff Report 

Renaissance Zone Application for 

30 University Drive North (261-F) 

701 Collective 
 
Project Evaluation: 

 
The City of Fargo received a Renaissance Zone application from 701 Collective LLC to rehabilitate the existing 

structure at 30 University Drive North. Pursuant to the application, the intent of the project is to complete 

extensive exterior and interior renovations to a former towing company building facility. The building is 1 level 

and includes approximately 1,907 commercial square feet. The rehabilitation would renovate and update the 

building to provide commercial space for a restaurant.  Overall, the building improvements would include 

significant capital costs relating to structural alterations, window and door replacement, and updating HVAC 

and plumbing.  

 

The construction would begin in the spring or summer 2017 with the goal of completion in the summer of 2017. 

 

The Planning Department has reviewed the application and has provided a project ranking based on the analysis 

below. 

 
Lines 1: Use consistent with the RZ Plan (as per Visions and Goals): As noted in the 2015 Renaissance Zone 
Development Plan the desired land use on Block 52 is identified as: redevelopment and Infill; mixed-use or commercial. 
As proposed, the project will contribute to a number of goals and objectives as outlined in the RZ Plan as follows: 
 

1. Activity Generator [goal]: Develop activity-generating enterprises near Renaissance Zone’s major 
commercial corridors: University Avenue North and NP/1st Avenue.  
 

The project is located on 1st Avenue North and University Drive North along prominent entry points 

into downtown.   Significant investment to the existing commercial space will increase the activity in 

this corridor.  

 
2. Walkable Districts [goal]: Create “walkable districts” that integrate a wide range of activities and land 

uses; thus encouraging on-street activity. 
 

The project will enhance the overall walkability of downtown Fargo by creating another destination 

point along the corridors. There are many new shops and dining opportunities near this subject 

location. Added improved commercial spaces will attract more businesses that may not be able to 

afford prime real estate along Broadway. 

 
3. Ground Floor Uses [goal]: Reserve ground floor land uses to those that will encourage streets to come to 

life – shops, offices, cafes, restaurants and other “public” facilities. 
 

The project will include the renovation of the ground floor of the property into a restaurant use to 

encourage more street activity in the area. 

 
4. Neighborhood Center [goal]: Make “Broadway” Fargo’s “Main Street” – a pedestrian-friendly, 

mixed-use magnet that anchors downtown neighborhoods. 

 

The proposed project would act as a destination on the fringe of downtown to generate foot 

traffic and provide a link between the surrounding neighborhood and the downtown area.  

 



5. Urban Design [goal]: Projects will embody strong urban design principles inclusive of building massing 
and form, building materials, pedestrian orientated design, streetscape, building orientation and recognition 
of the importance of defined block corners, architectural style, high building coverage percentages, limited 
setbacks or downtown district appropriate setbacks, design longevity and street level transparency. 

 
6. Transportation [goal]:  Manage downtown transportation, accessibility and parking issues in a manner 

that will allow for further commercial developments and will make the entire area more user-friendly. 
 

The property is located near a transit stop and will provide ADA compliant structural 

improvements.  The location and the ADA compliant infrastructure will allow the entire area to be 

more user-friendly and manage downtown transportation issues by promoting another mode choice 

as a transportation option. 

 
7. Safe Streets – Safe Neighborhoods [goal]: Encourage safe streets and safe neighborhoods by relying on 

and utilizing the “natural surveillance” of lively and active streets.  
 

More people will be working and visiting this area resulting in a more lively and active street.  The 

activity and enhanced aesthetics from the improvements to the property will provide more natural 

surveillance to increase the safety of the area.  

 
8. High Quality Housing [goal]:  Continue to encourage the production of unique high quality housing that is 

developed in areas targeted for residential development or as a component of a mixed-use project. 
 

9. Infill [goal]: Encourage and actively pursue projects that increase the productivity of underutilized 
property such as surface parking lots, vacant land and parcels with low building to land value ratios. Infill 
projects shall conform and be consistent with urban design principles as set forth in Goal 5, above.. 

 
The project is an infill project in that it will repurpose an existing, underutilized building for more 

intense uses. 

 
10. Housing Amenities [goal]:  Integrate quality housing with public open space and neighborhood amenities, 

requiring the enhancement of existing amenities in conjunction with the creation of new ones. 
 

11. Downtown Entryways [goal]:  Enhance auto entry experiences with landscaping improvements to all 
major corridors (Broadway, Roberts St, 1st/NP Avenue, Main Avenue) and gateway statements at 
Broadway/Main Avenue, Broadway/6th Ave N, 1st Avenue/Red River, Main Avenue/Red River and 
Main Ave/10th Street N. 

 
The project is located on University Drive North and 1st Avenue North.  Both corridors are 

utilized by car, bike, and pedestrian transportation modes to enter into downtown Fargo.  

 
12. The Place to Be [goal]: Make downtown the entertainment/cultural/recreational center of the city… Make 

downtown a key destination for visitors/conventioneers and a key destination for residents. 
 

The proposed project will provide a key downtown recreational destination.  The project proposes 

repurposing an under-utilized building to provide restaurant services. 

 
13. A Place Like No Other [goal]:  Highlight the unique historic character of the Renaissance Zone by placing 

a high value on historic preservation and overall awareness of the history of the area. 
 

14. 24 Hours a day – 7 Days per Week – 365 Days a Year [goal]:  Design spaces, facilities and features that 
will attract people to the area both day and night, on weekdays and weekends, and during all seasons of the 
year. 

 
15. Connections and Coordination [goal]: … Strong connections between people, places and things to do are 

vital to creating a strong sense of community. 
 

The proposed project will provide a social venue where connections between people can be 

established and contribute to a strong sense of community. 

 



 (9 /10 points) 
 
Line 2: Will exterior rehabilitation or the proposed improvements be sufficient to eliminate any and all deteriorated 
conditions that are visible on the exterior of the building? Does the project scope address the interior and exterior of the 
building in a comprehensive manner?:  
 

Proposed improvements will include: structural alterations, window and door replacement, and updating HVAC 

and plumbing. The rehabilitation project is sufficient to eliminate any deteriorated conditions that are visible on 

the exterior of the building. 

 
(10/ 10 points) 
 
Line 3: Does the investment comply with the minimum State standard that requires an investment of no less than 50% of 
the current true and full valuation of the building?:  
 

The property is currently assessed at $164,000. The applicant has proposed a total rehabilitation investment of 

$171,050 which exceeds the required 50% investment guideline. These improvements will result in $89 per SF 

(RZ minimum is $25 per SF for residential and $40 per SF for commercial) being invested into the existing space.  

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 4: Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 
commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan?:  
 
Pursuant to City of Fargo Renaissance Zone standards, in order to qualify for consideration, a project must meet 

a minimum $25 per SF capital improvement threshold for residential rehabilitation and $40 per square foot 

capital improvement for commercial rehabilitation. New construction must meet $100 per square foot capital 

investment threshold.  

 

According to the application, the structure accommodates 1,907 square feet.  The application estimates a total 

capital investment of $171,050, which calculates to approximately $89 per SF.  

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 5:  Sub-Total: The sub-total of lines 1–4 equals 40 points. 
 
Line 6: Use consistent with the RZ Plan (as per Visions and Goals)?:  
 
Line 7: Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 

commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan?  
 
Line 8: Tenant must be leasing space in a building that has been approved as a Zone project: NA 
 
Line 9: The new construction or proposed improvements are representative of “High Priority Land Uses” as defined in 
the RZ Plan: These criteria are defined by four sub-categories, as follows: 
 

Primary Sector Business: N/A 

 

Active Commercial, Specialty Retail or Destination Commercial: The project is located near both 

University Drive North and 1st Avenue North, both prominent entry points into downtown. Significant 

investment to the existing building to create commercial spaces with more intense uses will increase the 

activity in this corridor.  Renovations will allow the building to acquire more employees and attract 

more visitors. 

 

Mixed Use Development: N/A 

 (6 / 10 points) 
 
Line 10: The investment is located in a ‘Target Area’ as defined by the RZ Plan:   

 
1) Parcels that have been vacant or underutilized for an extended period of time:  



 
The proposed project will provide investment in a property that was underutilized for an extended 

period of time.  The renovation of the building will provide several more intense uses that will generate 

more activity as well as provide a destination. 

 (5/5 points) 
 
2) Parcels specifically targeted for clearance:  
 

The RZ Plan designates Block 52 as being appropriate for redevelopment and infill; mixed-use or 

commercial. The proposed project meets these objectives by redeveloping an existing building for 

commercial uses. 

(5/5 points) 
 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 11: The project will create civic space or public space and/or will enhance pedestrian connectivity, streetscape 
amenities or will contribute to street level activation:  
 
This project will enhance and strengthen the University Drive North and 1st Avenue North corridors by 

renovating an existing structure into an updated commercial development. The renovation will improve the 

appearance of these gateways into the downtown core. The project will improve the overall appearance and 

contribute to the overall level of activity in the downtown fringe. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 12: Consideration and analysis as to the total actual investment in the project:  
 
As proposed, the rehabilitation project and improvement costs exceed both the 50% (true and full value of the 

building) and $40 per square foot requirement. As previously noted, the application represents a total estimated 

investment of $171,050. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 

Line 13: Consideration as to whether the project will include or accommodate the relocation of a business from another 
North Dakota community:  
 
The project does not involve the movement or relocation of a business from another North Dakota community. 

 
(10 / 10 points) 
 
Line 14: Is the project located within a historic district? Will the project fit contextually and will the project contribute or 
enhance the area from an architectural perspective?  
 
This property is located outside the boundary of the Downtown Historic District. The proposed rehabilitation 

project will contribute to enhancing the aesthetics of the area. 

 
(9 / 10 points) 
 

Summary: 

 
This application received a score of 94 on a 100-point scale. The applicant met all required criteria and the use is 

consistent with the RZ Plan. In addition, the proposed rehabilitation project surpasses the local capital 

improvement requirement of $40 per square foot capital improvement for commercial rehabilitation. New 

construction must meet $100 per square foot capital investment threshold.  

 

This project is consistent with the RZ Plan as activity generators and walkable districts are important initiatives 

highlighted in the plan. The proposal will increase activity and contribute to enhancing the aesthetic appearance 

along University Drive North and 1st Avenue North. 

 



The amount invested in the project exceeds state and local guidelines. The project does not involve the relocation 

of commercial businesses from another North Dakota city. The applicant is not seeking historic preservation tax 

credits. The applicant will pursue historic preservation grants to aid in the rehabilitation effort.  

 

This project will make use of a structure that is currently underutilized. Staff believes that this project will be a 

benefit to the downtown community and will positively contribute to the health of surrounding businesses.  

 
Suggested motion:   

 

Approve the application submitted by 701 Collective and grant the property tax exemption and the State income 

tax exemptions as allowed by the ND Renaissance Zone law contingent upon completion of the project and 

verification of costs.  



 

 

Renaissance Zone Scorecard 

Minimum Criteria (Rehabilitation Project) 
  Possible 

Rating 
Staff 
Rating 

1 Use consistent with the plan (as per Vision and Goals) 10 9 
2 Exterior rehabilitation sufficient to eliminate any and all deteriorated conditions that are visible on the exterior 

of the building 
10 10 

3 Re-investment that totals no less than 50 percent of the current true and full valuation of the building 10 10 
4 The investment totals at least $40 in capital improvements per square foot for commercial properties or $25 in 

capital improvements per square foot for residential properties  (The authority may waive the square foot 
investment requirement for certain projects) 

10 10 

Minimum Criteria (Proposals involving new construction or additions) 
6 Use consistent with the plan (as per Vision and Goals) N/A NA 
7 Does the investment comply with minimum investment thresholds (locally determined) for residential and 

commercial projects as set forth in the RZ Plan? 
N/A NA 

8 Tenant must be leasing space in a building that has been approved as a Zone project NA NA 
Project Review Guidelines  
9 The new construction or proposed improvements are representative of “High Priority Land Uses” as defined 

in the RZ Plan: 
 Primary sector business 
 Active Commercial, Specialty Retail and/or Destination Commercial 
 Mixed use development (combination of housing, commercial, and/or retail uses in a horizontal or vertical 

fashion) 
 Large, upscale residential units 

10 6 

10 The investment is located in a ‘Target Area’ as defined by the RZ Plan: 
 Parcels that have been vacant or underutilized for an extended period of time 
 Parcels specifically targeted for clearance 

10 10 

11 The project will create civic space or public space and/or will enhance pedestrian connectivity, streetscape 
amenities or will contribute to street level activation: 

 Incorporation of "civic" or "public" space within a redevelopment proposal will receive additional 
consideration 

 Demonstrated commitment to strengthening pedestrian corridors and issues of "connection" 
 Attention to streetscape amenities 
 Contribution to street activity 

10 10 

12 Consideration and analysis as to the total actual investment in the project: 
 Consideration can be given for the level of capital investment in a project.  (i.e., additional consideration can be 

given for higher levels of investment) 

10 10 

13 Consideration as to whether the project will include or accommodate the relocation of a business from another 
North Dakota community: 

 Commercial tenants that are re-locating within the Downtown Area (as defined by the 1996 Downtown Area 
Plan) are not eligible for tax incentives without special approval from the Zone Authority 

 Commercial tenants that are relocating from a North Dakota community (other than Fargo) to the Fargo 
Renaissance Zone are not eligible for tax incentives without special approval from the Zone Authority. 

10 10 

14 Is the project located within a historic district? Will the project fit contextually and will the project contribute or 
enhance the area from an architectural perspective? 

 Although not included in the Project Review Guidelines, historic preservation is considered an important 
component of downtown projects even when Historic Preservation and Renovation Tax Credits are not being 
requested. 

10 9 

  Total Rating  (100 possible points) 100 94 



2 AVE N

1 AVE N 12 ST N

MAIN AVE

UNIVERSITY DR N

13 1/2 ST N

NORTHERN PACIFIC AVE N

Subject Property




















